Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors
Regular Monthly Meeting

Dial-A-Ride RIDES

A Service of Tillamook County Transportation District

Wednesday, October 15, 2025, at 6:00PM

Transportation Building
3600 Third Street, Tillamook, Oregon



Tillamook County Transportation District
BOARD OF DIRECTORS — REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING
Agenda: Wednesday, October 15, 2025 @ 6:00pm

To attend by phone, please dial: +1 (253) 215-8782 Meeting ID: 814 4875 2742
To attend virtually, please use this link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81448752742

REGULAR MEETING

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Roll Call

Announcements, Changes to Agenda, Agenda Approval
Public & Guest Comments

Executive Session: None

RO =

S

—

ATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
Financial and Grant Reports (August) (Pgs. 1-24)
Service Performance Reports (August) (Pgs. 25-32)
Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance (Pgs. 33-36)
0. NW Rides Brokerage Report (September) (Pgs. 37-39)
1. General Manager Report (Pgs. 40-41)

a. Administration/Coordination

b. Planning/Development

c. Grant Funding

d. Facility/Property Management

e. Operations/Vehicle Maintenance
12.  Miscellaneous

= 5.0 0 N

CONSENT
13. Motion to Approve the Minutes of September 17, 2025, Regular Board Meeting (Pgs. 42-45)
14. Motion to Approve August 2025 Financial Statements
15.  Ordinance No. 3: Amending Ordinance No. 3 - Establishing Regulations Governing Conduct
on District Property (Pgs. 46-54)

ACTION ITEMS
None

DISCUSSION ITEMS
16. Staff Comments
17. Board of Directors Comments
18.  Adjournment

UPCOMING EVENTS

October 31, 4:00-6:00 PM: Trunk or Treat Trolley Operation
November 2"-5": Oregon Public Transportation Conference, Bend

Next regularly scheduled meeting to be held November 19, 2025


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/

Tillamook County Transportation District
Normal Trial Balance
From 8/1/2025 Through 8/31/2025

Account Code Account Title Debit Balance Credit Balance
1001 General Checking Account #4558 395,247.89

1006 Payroll Checking #5614 20,455.71
1009 NW RIDES ACCOUNT #8510 1,495,754.36

1011 Prop. Mgmt. Checking #7071 5,707.54

1012 NWOTA #4564 22,202.56

1020 LGIP1020 #5879 991,966.03

1030 LGIP1030 #5931 1,092,868.19

1035 LGIP1035 #6518 119,535.58

1040 Petty Cash 200.00

Report Total 4,123,482.15 20,455.71
Report Difference 4,103,026.44

A/
o /7 /9&9§

Date: 10/7/25 04:25:56 PM MONTHLY BOARD REPORT - CASH Page: 1



| e SLNNODDV T1V - DNILYOdTd A¥vV0d ATHLNOW Wd 0Z-1Z:%0 ST/L/01 -=1.d

AN

S2OIAIS [AUUOSIDg

sasuadxyg
UeTh T (TY9TL0EF L) 00 GOt 759 61 TS ECT TOO0ST8YY S99 ser SPIINOSIY B0,
25000 000181 (00°0F1°81) 000 000 00°0 0zer sy M WIOT) JsuBI],
%000 00'8F1°LES (00'8F1°LER) 00°0 (££79L°69) 000 816% pung J[LS WOl 19jsurl]
24000 00°000°¢ (00°000°¢) 000 (00°05T) 00°0 L16¥ VLOMN WO IJSurI]
%000 00°STTTH (o0 szT'Th) 000 00°0 00'0 Slet 'Sy Y2Ing Y2 A WO I9YSUBL],
%5000 00°989°70€ (00°989°'+0¢) 000 00°0 00°0 Fl6t aa1989Y [B11de)) WOLf I9JSUBRL],
%9€° €T (z9'7T8'9T) 00°000°S¢E SCLLLS LY916T 0€196°¢ 015+ awoou| 18a191u]
%00°0 (00°000°01) 00°000°01 00°0 £€'€E8 00°0 01+¥ awoou] - §138SY J0 3[eg
%ZT' 1 (ot ver'en) 00'T09°€El 09991 THEET'l 09°991 00¥¥ JWI0IU] SNOAUB[[AISTA
%000 (00°000°081) 00°000°081 000 00°000°S1 00°0 9FTh SOES - SIUBID
%000 (0o'cze’Lon) 00°€ZE°LOL 000 RCER6'S 00°0 SPTF 01€6 - siueID
%00°0 (00°089°9¥6°7) 00°089°9+6°C 000 L9955 SFT 000 0¥y (#) 11€S - swelD
%000 (00°000°001) 00°000°001 00°0 ££76EE°8 0070 172¥ AIAQD - sWeID
9,000 (00°L9FFLL) 00°L9F'¥LL 000 T6'8E5°F9 0070 ozt 11€S VL - Siueln
%000 (00°000° 1S+ 1) 00°000° 161 000 L9°9T6°0TT 00°0 01TF sjueln) [eyde)
%rT ¥ (18°886°69) 00 T1ETLI 61 TTE9F ST 656 61°TTE9F €1y X[, 10148 IS JISUBL] SSEN
%6t 19 (6F'¥8E8L) 00 LS €0T 15°681°¢Z1 059691 16°681°6C1 0zZ1¥ ANUIANY I2qQUITT, 18IS
%169T (+6°05Z°6) 00°859°C1 90°L0t'E £8°+50°1 8E'8TH' I 011+ xe | Apadoay siea A 1sed
%L8°0 (FO'8EL ST T) 00'198°59T°1 96'TTI°I1 TH'88+ 501 L6965 F 001¥ xe ] Kuadold
%000 (00'LL9°60E) 00°LL9'60€ 000 T+'908°¢T 000 0zt SNUSATY 1OBAUO))
%Pt TT (15°€68°001) 00°001°0€1 6+'90T°6C LY TFS01 0L'L96°ET 000% RERIR |
%000 (00°95Z°L0T 1) 00'9ST°L0T’1 000 L9+09°001 000 00sg [eide) Sunpom
muuuﬂomuwm
%91 DUBLIEA 195png [B10] eIy 125png [emoy

ja8png 810,

IB3 A JuaLM))

$T0Z/1€/8 ySnoay ], $70g/1/8 wolg

pOLIad uALIN)

puny [e1ausn) - 10
JUAUWID)E)S [RIOUBUI]

poLad Ju2LImy)

PSI(q vone)iodsuel], AJuno)) yoowe[[i ]



SLNNOJDV TIV - DNILAYOdEd ddvOod ATHLNOW

¢ a8ed
%F8'T SI°6TO'0LT 00°000°5L1 I8FLE'Y | 68 F16°1
%8t STI0L°LI 00700981 SL'868 00°0SS°1 96799
%L0'61 7656511 000+ S0FEL'T ARZIN LE 1T
%TLL L6¥89°1T 00008'€T €0°SI8I £E'8C6'1 S6 191
%96°1T 00°066°1 00055°C 00°09S 0$'z1T 00°001
%E6°TI TOLSL'EE 00°0LL8E 26°710°S F80ETE £0'+00°C
%TETT 65 79T 00°LET9T 19°TL6T H'981°C €0 t6t'
%61°9T 91'L98°S 00°056'L +8780°C 05799 79°18T°1
%000 00 1LEG1T 00 1LES1T 000 8 L6 LI 00°0
%FE 01 €L TES €Y 00°ESS 8% LT1T0G 80°9+0°F PEFET Y
%ET'Tl TOETT'ET 00°09t+°9C 86°9€T°E 10'507°C 61°819°1
%00°0 009691 00°969°1 000 £EIH1 000
%0t'8 TOEF9FT 00°606'9¢ 86°'19T'T 80°THT'T 66°0€
A 00°56€°L6T 00°000°00T 00°509°C £9°999°91 00°509°C
%L1'EF 08°79T'9¢ 00°L00°66 0T vrLTr 860678 08°T96°L1
%5971 SSOFSHELT 00v06°L81°E SI'LSEC0F 99'859°69¢ YT OPL P61
%£9°96 50°0TET 00'99T°6€ S6'SHE'LE LTTLTE 0070
%I 6T 081797 00°880°LE 0T EL] 0L 99°060°¢ 00°059°L
%ETTT 61'$66°99 00 +6£°SL 15°86¢°S ¥878T9 [Z+0t°E
%FT 91 08°6£S°LSE 00°€16°9TF 0TELE6Y 80°9L5°5¢ SLIOL TF
%TLL I+'L86°9LT 00°8L1°00€ 6S061°€T £8°+10°5T [29%€TI
%8S T1 9t 608691 00'886°161 ¥S8LITT 0066651 CLFSITI
%¥T 6 0€' 1+9°8FT°1 00'+68°SLET 0L°TST'LTL €8°LSOFIT £8°06+°59
%EF 01 TH €551 00°0¥€0L1 85'808°L1 00°S61 T +97616°8
%TISI TI'LOS +8Y 00 €¥R0LS 8R°CEE98 STOLS LY L8910 P

%91 OUBLIBA 125png [e1o], [emay 198png [emoYy

198png B0

182 A U210

poLa  Juaumy)

$T0T/1€/8 ysnoIy ], $7OT/1/8 woiy

puny [elauar) - ()
JUSWIDIE)S [BIDUBUL]

11LsI([ uonelrodsued ], AJuno)) JOowey,

pouag waLny

0rze
0TTs
01zZ8
06l1¢
S8IS
081¢
SLIS
0L1S
091¢
0s18
SFIS
oris
0zI1s
£01S
001¢

cs0¢s
€508
7508
1508
0508
0r0s
0e0s
0zos
010¢

Wd 0T 1340 ST/L/O01 21Ra

asuadxd a[21yap
Fururer] 3 [2ARI]
asuadxy auoydala],
FunadIeA
UONEISIUTWPY [0102]Y 29 g
asuadxq jeuonesadQ
asuadxy pieog
asuadxg 20140
20urINSu]

SasuadI 79 $39

W9y 1endwo)

My wewdimbg 20110
suonduasqng 2 seng
suraue|J

SADIAIDS [BUOISSIJOL]

S2IIAIRG pUR S[RLIARJA
S201A19G [2UL0SIa] [BIO]

‘suj uonesuaduo)) SIaI0M
BQIA [|014Ed

JuAWwRINAY 110148
aredy)eay |j01ke ]
asuadxq []01Ke]
20uBUUIBIA ([J0IAE]
SIAALI(] :[[OIAR]

yoredsi(q :jjo1ied
UONENSIIIUIPY ([[0IABJ



¢ =g SINNODJJY TIV - DNLLYOdAd QivOd ATHINOW N 0T 1TH0 STL/OL e

sasuadxq [B10],

TEC S TE 6L BEC 6 00 LOZ 790 01 69 LTY 9CS YT EFL 6C8 9 TFO OFC

%000 00°05L°E18°T 000SL°E€18°C 000 €8°66€TET 00°0 LepinQ [eide) (w10,

%000 000SL°E18°T 00°0SL°€18°C 0070 £8°6HETET 000 saseyung [ende)) 10,

%00°0 00000709 0000009 00°0 00°000°S 000 0509 s1afolg [eide) sepo

%000 00000701 00°000°01 00°0 0070 000 0+09 s19)jayg/RBeuglg doig sny

%000 00°000°S 1 00°000°ST 000 000 000 0209 apesddn semndwo))

©400°0 00°09t°6L1 00'09t° 6.1 00°0 00°SS6' 1 0070 0109 uontppy Huatuase(day ueA

%000 0006T°6¥5°T 00067°6¥5°T 000 ER0VFTIT 0070 0009 uonippyauswese|day sng

saseyaund |ende)

AepnQ [eide)

%0070 00°S0E'LT]'T 00°S0E°LT8T 000 99°60L'8TT 0070 SIJSUBL] [RI0L

%000 00'6+0°619°T 00°6F0°619°1 000 SLOTEFEL 0070 0816 [eg] pun | Swpuy pajeudorddeun)

%600'0 00 L9F'STI 00°LOF'STTL 000 85°5S6°T6 000 0916 pung v LOMN 07 JaJSUel],

%000 00000701 00000701 000 £EEES 0070 0516 9A13SDY INYIA 01 JfSUBL],

24000 006878 00°68L°T8 0070 00°0 0070 0116 Jwd N Aadord 01 19fsuel],

m.mu,*m:m‘_x__l

%866 OF LLETITT 00°8FL SET'T ¥SOLTETT 10°6L6°T01 8CT10E°FS 530113 puR S[ELIEJA] [EI0],

%EY'S FLS6T'E 00°008°€¢ 97'+07 LY 16T 1720l 9tEs quiep Lijioey suonedp

%00°0 (00'612) 00°0 00'61T 00°0 00°LTI 0tEs neday 7y urepy A1adorg

©400°0 (9L7¢€51) 00°0 9L'€S 1 0070 6L°LT $8TS IR 21U 1ISURL],

%6000 00'611°9 006119 000 767605 0070 0LTS pung UoNEaIY J0qE WS

%00°ST 00°000°0€ 00°000°0F 00000701 €EEEe’s 000 9978 JUALUASINGUIY] ATER[IA JAGUIIJA]

%0EST TE910° 00°00Z°1 89°€81 007001 69'CT 0925 aFe1soq

%00°0 00°000°0¢€ 00°000°0¢ 0070 00°005°T 000 L¥TS [an aurdoug

%L¥'S1 0L 0Tt ¥61 00°000°0£ 0£'685°SE L9991°61 TI'6S0°LI SHTS [an 2urjosen) 79 [2591(]

%91 DUBLIEA 128png 101, B2y 1298png [enioy

ja8png (w10

182 A JU2LND)

$Z0T/1€/8 YSNOIY [, STOT/1/8 Woid

poLIa{ JUaLINy)

punyg [elausn - [
JUDWIB}S [BIDURUL]

LS uoneliodsuel], AJuno)) JOOWeR[L],

pouag juauny)



f :28ey SLNNOJDY T1V - DNILYO0ddd ddvod ATHLNOW
ACEE 6T 08P SLT 00 68L 88C TS 30% €I TFIS6 11 T6Co6 L
%FS0 00 6¥6°5S1 00'68L951 00°0+8 80°6+9°C 00°0+8
%L9°0 0009121 00°000°5T1 00°0+8 00°0 00°0+8
%L9°0 00°091°+Z1 00'000°5Z1 00°0+8 0070 00°0¥8
%000 00'68L°T€ 00°68L° 1€ 000 80°6+9°C 000
%000 00°01€92 00'01£°92 0070 05'Z61°C 00°0
%0070 00°6Lt"S 00°6LF'S 00°0 8S'9St 000
,5H 6 6r 15611 00'000°TET 1S°89F° 1 FEEEE6 C6'STIL
%9t T1 0S'T10°8T 00°000°C¢ 0S°L86°E L97999°C 0STIFT
%65°S 69°88L°€L 00°000°8L [€11T°F 00°005°9 6€°L98°T
Y%FE 1T 0£0EL°CT 00°000°0Z 0L'69T'v 000 90°'9¥8°l
%0070 00°000°C 00°000°C 00°0 L9991 000
250070 00°68L9T1 (00°68279T1) 000 (s0°6t1) 0070
%000 00°000°5T1 (00°000°5Z1) 000 0070 000
%000 00°68L°Z8 (00°68.°T8) 000 (80°668'9) 00°0
%0070 (00°008'01) 00°008°01 00°0 00°006 000
%000 (00°00T°57) 00°00Z°ST 00°0 00°00T°C 000
2000 (00°000°ST) 00°000°SY 000 00°05L°¢ 000

%91 ADUBLIBA ja8png |e101 [BNIoY 128png |enoy

198png [B10 ]

182 & 1U21n)

$TOT/1€/8 USNOIYL STOT/1/8 WOl
pun,] wawoaTeuey Aadold - Z0

POl JuaLIny)

JUSLIRIBIS [BIOUBUL]
Jo1sI(q uoneiodsuel |, A3uno) JOOWe[|LY,

poLIdg JuaLIN))

0ces

8EES
LEES

0res
0ogs
G8TS
001§

clov
[T6t
0l6¥
006¥
00s¢

Wd 0T 12%0 ST/L/01 2180

sesuadxq |B10]
Aepng ende) e1o],
saseyoan g [ende) (210,
uoneAouay| 2y areday Surpping
seseyaIng Jende)
201A12G 199(T [B10],
1900 ueo] 41LO
1L00 te0T DAL 9ILO
2DIAIAS 193(]
Aepng rende)
SADIAIDS PUE S[ELIQIEA [BIOT,
nedayy 2 qure Auadoig
asuadxg Suneradp Auadoay
JUIBJA] 1O1UQD) JISURI],
SIIIAIIG [BUOISSIYO01
SOOIAIOG PUE S[ELINBI
sasuadxy

$92IM0SNY [BI0 ],
waaoldwy ende) woa 19ysuei]
pun, [BI2UaD) WO 19JSUBl]
awoouj dxq [euoneiado) asea]
AWODU] 358
[ende) Sunjiopm

SI0IMOSY



g a8y SLNNOJDV T1V - DNILYOdd¥ ddvOod A THLNOW
%000 00°666°360°[ 00°666'860°T 00°0 8599118 0070
%000 006668601 006668601 000 85991°18 000
240070 00'€1£°699 00°€1€°699 000 80'9LL°SS 0070
2,000 00'989°+0¢ 00°989°¥0¢ 000 05°06£°ST 0070
20070 00°000°5T1 0070007521 00°0 0070 000
%LL'0 (F+'605°060°1) 00°666'860°1 95°68+'8 ST £85°16 90°€ST't
%STHT (F+°015°97) 00°000°S€ 95°681°8 L97916°C 90'EST Y
%000 (00°666°€90°1) 00°666°€90°1 000 85°999°88 00°0

%91 dduBLIE A 1a5png [e10]. [emoy 195png [emoYy

1e8png |Blo]

Jea A uaun) poLad juarmnn

$TOT/1€/8 YSNOIYL STOT/1/8 WOy
puny 21353y [ende) - 0
JUAIIIE]S [BIOUBUL]

POl JuaLn))

PLYSI uoneliodsuelr] A3uno)) JOOWe[|LE,

SL16
col6
0tle

015t
005¢€

Wd 0T 120 ST/L/OL =1Rd

sasuadxq (B0
SIgjsuel] [e1o],
amyrpuadxg 2Imin, JoJ 2AIsay
U9IRIA] JURID) {0) 0) J3JSUBL],
pun, [BI2U0) 0) IJSUBI],
SIQJSued ]
sasuadxg

$22IN0S3Y [BI0 L
auro2u] 18319)u]
1ende) Sunpiop
S22IN0SAY

©



9 @0k SINNODDV TV - HNILLEOddd AddvVO0d ATHLNOW
%000 00°STTLY 00°STTLY 00°0 L9791y 000
%000 00°STTLY 00°STT LY 000 L99TP 000
%00°0 00°000°S 00°000°C 00°0 LO91Y 00°0
%000 00°S7T'Th 00°€TTTH 000 000 000
%00°0 (00°€TTLD) 00°STT LT 0070 €L89T°C 00°0
%000 0000001 (00'000°01) 00°0 (g£€e8) 000
%000 (00°€TT'LE) 00°STTLE 00°0 80°Z01°¢ 00°0

9,01 S0UBLIE A 128png [e10] [enI0Y 198pnyg [EMOY

103png [eo],

183 A JUDLIND)

poLag JuaLIn

€T0T/1€/8 YSnoay L STOT/1/8 Woi
PUT,] SAISY ASeYIINg J[IIYIA - G0

JUSWISIB]S [BIOUBUIL]
PLaSIQ uoneliodsuea [, A3uno)) JOOwe[fI],

pOLIRJ JUALINY)

CL16
0016

116%
00st

IANd 0T-1T-¥0 §T/L/01 -®d

sasuadxq [®1o],
SI9JSueI] TR10],
aimpuadx aIning 10} 3A12sY
1E6S 1D 01 13Jsuel]
m._w.ﬁm_.:w‘_r—..

sasuadxq

Sa0IN0SaY |BI0L
pun, [EIAUAL) WIOT] I3JSURI],
rearde) Sunjiop
$901N0SYg

N~



L 2fed SLNNODJIV T1V - ODNILYOdEY ddVOd ATHLINOW
%0070 00°0F1°ET 00°0¥1°ET 000 L9'9TF 000
%0070 00°0¥L €T 00°0¥1°€T 00°0 L991Y 000
%000 00°000°¢ 00°000°S 00°0 L99T¥ 00°0
%000 000181 00°0r 181 000 000 000
%0070 (00'0¥1°€T) 00°0F1 €T 00°0 €€'8T61 000
%000 (000¥1°€T) 0007 1°€T 00°0 £L°8T6° 000

%91 DUBLIBA 128png [B10], 1P8png [BIIDY

198png 10

182 A JU21IN))

poLIdg AL

$TOT/1€/8 Yyanoty], $70T/1/8 wol
JAIDSY SIUBUIIUIEIA SEAY SDE] - 9()

JUSWIDIR]S [RIOUEBUL]
11081 uoneiodsued], £Juno)) JOOWR[L],

pOLI2{ UL

CLIG
0gle6

00SE

Wd 0T:1T+¥0 §T/L/01 21

sasuadxq 8101,
SI9JSUBL] [B1O],
armypuadxg 2Iming I0J 2AT1IS3Y
pun,j [elauan) 0 J9jSuel],
SI3JSUBI],
sasuadxg

$92IN0S3Y [B10],
[enden) Suppom
§90IN0SNY

(e}



g afing SINNODIVY TTV - DNILYOdIY aavod ATHLNOW
300 00 CSLRFS T U0 L6 GFS T 00SZC 1 T 180 6C1 00SCC T
%0070 00°LOF SII°L 00°L9F°SI1°1 00°0 8576566 0070
%00°0 00 L9 STI'T 007 L9 SLI'T 000 85°656°76 00°0
%0070 00 L9V STT'T 00 LOFSTT'T 00°0 85°C56°T6 0070 0¥09
%00°0 00°015°65¢€ 00°01S°65¢ 000 L1'656°6T 0070
%00°0 00°015°9¢€ 00°015°95€ 00°0 L1'60L°6T 0070 0816
%000 00°000°¢ 00°000°€ 000 00°0ST 0070 0€16
%E9°T 00°SLLEL 00°000°SL 00°STTT 99°991°9 00°STT1
%0070 00°000°1 00°000°1 00'0 00°0 0070 0zTs
%000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°0 L9911t 0070 061§
%90°¢ 00°SLL'8E 00°000°0F 00°6TT°1 CEEELE 00°5ZT'1 7016
20070 00°000°$T 00'000°5T 000 £€°€80°C 0070 1016
%00°0 00000t 00000 00°0 £ergege 0070 001¢
%000 00°LS6°089 (00°LS6°089) 000 (I+'9+L79¢) 00°0
%0070 00°LOF'STIT (00°L9¥°SL1°1) 00'0 (85°556°26) 00°0 16+
2%00°0 (00'015°+5¢) 007015 FSE 00'0 0STHS' 6T 000 STk
2%00°0 (00°000°08) 00°000°08 000 £97999°9 00°0 005¢
%91 ADUBLIEA 125png 1g10], [Eniay 1@98png [emoYy

128pnyg B0

IBa A juaun)

$ZOT/1€/8 YSnoay L STOT/1/8 woiq
BI[[V HISUBL], U030 1SOMIULION - 80

pouad juauny)

JUSWIDIEIS [RIOURUL]
LS uoneiodsued], A)uno)) JOOWeR[L],

poLI3{ U2

Wd 0T 1T+0 ST/L/0L -=1ed o

sesuadxq |m10],
KepnQ ende) (ejog,
saseyoIng [eide)) [ejo],
s191joyS/e8eusig doig sng
saseraIng [grde))
KepnQ [wde)
SIgJSueRI] (10T,
(e pung Suipug pajendorddeun
pun,j [BJauan) 0] JAJSURI],
SIJSUBI],
S20IAI3G PUE S[ELINBIA] [BI0],
Fururel] 29 [2ARI1],
FunayIe
20UBUD)UIBIA] 21SQI AN
poddng aanensmunupy
S2IIAIRS |BUOISSIJO1
S20IAIRG PUB S[ELIIEIA

sasuadxy

S20IM0SY [BI10],
puny [BI2UID) WO 1JSUBI],
e o) Jemied V1IOMN
[ende)) Sunjop
S22MOSAY



10

6 28 SLNMNODDV TTV - DNILYOdIY A¥vOd A THLNOW W 0T 12340 ST/LO1T P1ed
%00°0 00°000°6 00°000°6 00°0 00°0SL 000 0ZTS Suruies] % [2ARL],
Ylt'+1 9T #95°0T 00°820°+T rLE9T'E £€'700°T [TLOLT 01TS asuadxg auordaya,
Y%Th'T 6T°0£8°9 00°000°L 1L°691 £E°E8S 6569 081S asuadxy |euoneiedQ
%S 161 LUTHFTF 00°000°S €8'LSL L991F 89°6TF 0L1S asuadxg 29140
%00°0 00°+81°8 00'+81°8 000 00°289 000 0915 aoueINSU]
%000 0000009 00°000°09 000 00°000°S 00°0 0S1¢ 538U 3 S22
2%L0°6 L'TIT VY 00'8£9°8¥ TSI LT €S0 +9°L0T'T St1S W 1andwo)
2%00°0 00'T66°1 00°766'1 000 00991 00°0 0t1s W2 wewdinby 20150
%89°1T 00°681°6C 00°697'LE 00°080°8 SLS0T'E 0000 0018 S301AI0S [BUOTSSAJOL]
wuu.gr_vw _u:.m wﬁmtuumz
%E9°E1 8T'901°859 00°000°T9L TLE68°E0T 66°667 €9 11°€56°CS SIVIAIRG [JUUOSIA [BI0],
24,000 00Tt 00TIF 00°0 cepe 00'0 §50¢ sy uonesuadwo)) SII0
%8091 9¢ 1091 0000+ LT +9°86L°T 00°05+°1 00651 £506 BqQaA [[014Bg
%¥T 0F 1T 6ESL 00°L19°T1 6L°LLO'S WISl FI16€°E 7508 W13y []014ed
%88'GT $87€H°CH 00'8L5°88 91°$T6'TT 05 18€°L 8 TOFT1 1508 areay[ea [[014e]
9%0L"L 01°109°99 00°€91°TL 06°196°G 86°€10°9 $T699°T 0508 asuadxy [J01Ae ]
%0501 80°8L0°F1 00°0EL'ST T6°159°1 €8°0T¢€T #9'05S 1+0S 10211pu] :[[0IKE(
%98°11 6917768t 00°001°6SS [£9L8°69 £€°85T°9F 05 0Pt EE 010s uoneNsIIWpY :||0iked
m.uu_.?ﬁw Ecdofu&
sasuadxy
%9L+1 (S9°70£96¥°C) 00°000°8++'9 SELE9ISE CEEEETLES 69°999°CLt $90IN0sAY [E10],
2%00°0 (00°000°09%) 00°000°09F 00°0 €L EEEYE 0070 LTOY 1283y UMN
%99'31 (59°Z0E3FTH) 00°000°001°S SELEDTSH 00°000°SZF 69°999°CLt 9Z0F SNUBAIY YMN
2%00°0 (00°000°888) 00°000°888 000 00°000°tL 000 00S€ [ende) Sunpom
SADINOSAY
%91 20UBLIE A 128png [B10] [EN0Y 123png [enioy

128png |B10], 183 A jU2LIN)) POl JuaLmy) pouad uaun)

ST0T/1€/8 Ysnody L Sz0z/1/8 woig

LINNODDV SAdId MN - 60
JUAW)E)S [BIOUBUL]

1PLsIq uoneyodsuer], A3uno)) JOOowB[LL



SLNNODJDV TTV - DNILYOdTd Auvod ATHLNOW

01 :@8ed
%ITST 96°L11°L9¥'S 00°000°8++9 +0'Z88°086 TEELEELES 8T LoV 8LY
2%00°0 0078 6FT'1 00 +F8 6FT T 000 LYESTFOT 000
2600'0 00 +H8°1T8 00'+¥8°1278 000 00°L8F'89 000
2600°0 00°000°8TF 00°000°8Z+ 00°0 £97999°G¢ 000
%LL 61 89'291°656°€ 0095196+t TE886°9LY 99°6L9°69¢ LTFISS9¢E
2500°0 00°008°01 00°008°01 000 007006 000
2500°0 00°00T°ST 00°00Z°sT 0070 00°001°C 000
%81°6T 05 101°L9T 00°000°LSE 0586868 00°0SL°6T 00°€I8°SE
%65°0¢ 007907°80C 00°000°00¢ 00F6L 16 00°000°52 00'+6L TE
%S161 ¥L'G8E€98°C 00°S6L° 1¥S°E 97°601'8L9 8S 6¥1°56T SIECH 68T
2,000 00°052 00°052 0070 £9°07 000

%91 QDUBLIBA 1a8png |10, Jeioy 128png [BIIOY

128png [B10]

JBa | juaLny)

$Z0T/1£/8 Ysnoay [, S0/ 1/8 woly
LNNODOV SAAT MN - 60

poLad juaLn)

JUSWAIBIS [BIDUBUL
1o1ns1(q uonejrodsuea ], AJuno) JOOWE[[LL

poLIad UaLN)

0816
CL16

00Es
18¢¢S
L9TS
99¢s
€9ce
0928

Wd 0Z:1Z:40 ST/LIO1 e

sasuadxq [@10],

SI9Jsuel] [B1O],
[eg pung Suipug parendoiddeun
amyrpuadxg 21N, 10J 9A1383Y

SI3JSUBI |

S301AI3S PUE S[ELIAIEJA [BIO],
asuadx3g Suneradp Auadoag
Y YO
2SINQLUIAY T[N 122JUNJOA
JUAWISINAUIIAY 2FBI[TA] 22 qUIAJA]
uoyepodsuer] paseyaing
age)sod

~
~



11 :@8eg SLNNOD2V TTV - DNILYOJdTY QdVOd A THINOW
%0070 00 TLELSST 00 TLELSET 0070 L9E0LLTL 000
2%00°0 00PF9 LTS T 00HF9°LTS'T 000 L9 E0E"LTT 000
20070 0096+ 06 00'96+°06F 00°0 LYFLS O 000
20070 00°000°00T 00°'000°00T 000 L97999°9| 00°0
200°0 00'8F1°LES 00'8PT°LES 00°0 £ET9L°69 000
200°0 00°LTL6T 00°LTL°6T 00°0 00°'00F 000
%,00°0 00008t 00008+ 000 00°'00% 000
%000 00°LZ6'FT 00'LT6HT 000 0070 000
%05°L (Z9FSS0FF 1) 00 1LELSSTT 8€918911 80'€0G°68 9+ 96¢
%TR ST (29°30T°t) 00°000°S SE16L 000 9t 96€
%000 (00°L66°1L) 00°L66'1L 000 000 00°0
%0070 (00°00+°9¥7) 00°00%°9¥T 000 £EEES0T 000
%6£°9T (00°098°09) 00'L89°C8 00°LZ8°12 850689 000
%81°€T (oo'6g1°TIE) 00°LEE90F 0086176 00°0 000
%00°0 (00°056 L) 00'056 7L 000 L1'6L0°T9 000

%91 Q0UBLIB A 125png B0 [enoy 128png B0V

193png [e10],

A2 A juanny)

poLIag 1uaLny)

$ZOT/1€/8 YSno L, §TOT/1/8 Woid

4118 - 01
1UAWRIE)S [BIOURUL]

poLIdg JuaLn)

1LSIQ uonejrodsuea] A3uno)) YOOowei],

0816
SL16
0€l6

1028
00zs

01y
LElY
9ty
SElY
eI
00s¢

Wd 0Z:12-+0 ST/L/OT =1Bd

sasuadxq |B1OL
SI9JSUBl] _NHO..H
leg pung Suipug pajeudoiddeun
amupuadxy 21Ny 10J aAIS3Y
pun, [B1aUaL) 0] IISURI],
SIQJSUBI],
syuatAe [eroadg jeio],
siua1dioay 01 siudwAeR 118
syuatdioay 01 syuawiked JI1S
sjuawfe [eredg
sasuadxqg

S20IT0S3Y [BIO]
auroau] jsaIau]
A1euo1210s1(] A11S
Arunurroarau] 118
epnuio g uenemndod J11S
B[NULIO ] [[01K8d JI1S
(ende) Sunyiom

S22IN0SaY

12



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register

1001 - General Checking Account #4558
From 8/1/2025 Through 8/31/2025

Docume... Document Transaction

Number Amount Payee Transaction Description

19354 8/8/2025 230.00 CLYDE ZELLER Airbrake CDL Upgrade

19355 8/8/2025 120.00 James Carlile DOT Medical Card

19356 8/8/2025 262.19 ALSCO - Portland Linen POA # 443610 ES July 2025
19357 8/8/2025 658.80 ASTOUND Phone Service 6/27-7/26/2025
19358 8/8/2025 9,537.38 CARSON OIL CO INC Fuel 7/16-7/31/2025

19359 8/8/2025 6.26 CENTURYLINK Local Fax 7/21-8/20/2025

19360 8/8/2025 54.25 COUNTRY MEDIA Board Meeting Notice 7/15/25
19361 8/8/2025 73.69 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS Water Service 7/9-7/26/2025
19362 8/8/2025 2,109.77 Les Schwab Tire Center POA #CB-000017252 July 2025
19363 8/8/2025 625.46 DAVISON AUTO PARTS, INC. POA July 2025

19364 8/8/2025 298.00 Prevailing Communications Radio Repair Bus 206 and 311
19365 8/8/2025 54.87 Rosenberg Builders Supply POA #58615 July 2025

19366 8/8/2025 309.52 ALSCO - Portland Linen POA 443610 ES May/June 2025
19367 8/14/2025 200.00 James Carlile CDL Airbrake Upgrade

19368 8/14/2025 1,283.55 CINTAS POA #19858580 JULY 2025

19369 8/14/2025 143.10 COUNTRY MEDIA Inv#763721/764685 Finance Job Ad
19370 8/14/2025 3,880.00 JORDAN RAMIS, PC Bus Stop Improvement Grant 35084
19371 8/14/2025 123.00 Oregon State Police NWR/TCTD Background Checks
19372 8/14/2025 198.00 TILLAMOOK RENTAL CENTER JULY 2025

19373 8/14/2025 8,400.00 SINGERLEWAK LLP Progress Billing Audit June 2024
19374 8/14/2025 250.00 Tillamook Chamber of Commerce 2025/2026 Membership Fees
19375 8/14/2025 400.80  VERIZON Tablet Service 6/27-7/26/2025
19377 8/22/2025 946.32 PACIFIC SOURCE FSA 8.2025

19378 8/26/2025 1,255.95  MUTUAL OF OMAHA Life/LTD/STD August 2025

19379 8/22/2025 754.32 ATU LOCAL #757 UNION DUES 8.2025

19380 8/26/2025 47,232.00 SPECIAL DISTRICTS INS. SERVICE Health/Dental Benifits August 2025
19381 8/27/2025 460.00 BIO-MED TESTING SERVICE, INC. Random/Pre Employment Testing
19382 8/27/2025 803.80 ABILA Abila Managed Plan 9/15-10/14/2025
19383 8/27/2025 8,455.70 CARSON OIL CO INC Fuel 08/01 - 08/15/2025

19384 8/27/2025 51.15 COUNTRY MEDIA Board Meeting Notice 8/12/2025
19385 8/27/2025 50.00 David McCall Board Meeting 08/20/2025

19386 8/27/2025 50.00 Eric Sappington Board Meeting 08/20/2025

19387 8/27/2025 404.82 Fred Meyer Customer Charges POA #56793

19388 8/27/2025 50.00 Gary A. Hanenkrat Board Meeting 8/20/2025

19389 8/27/2025 2,142.90 GenXsys Solutions, LLC 09/2025 Managed Service Fund
19389 8/27/2025 475.54 GenXsys Solutions, LLC 09/2025 Server Storage Virus Plan
19390 8/27/2025 14,319.80 INNOVA LEGAL ADVISORS TCTD/ATU Legal

19391 8/27/2025 50.00 Jonathan Bean Board Meeting 08/20/2025

19392 8/27/2025 39.97 Juliene J. Deputy Party Decorations

19393 8/27/2025 50.00 Marni Johnston Board Meeting 08/20/2025

19394 8/27/2025 50.00 Nan Devlin Board Meeting 08.20.2025

19395 8/27/2025 72.21 Office Depot Credit Plan Bus Cleaning Supplies

19395 8/27/2025 150.47 Office Depot Credit Plan Office Supplies/Bus Cleaning Supplies
19396 8/27/2025 57.05  Tillamook PUD LB Barn Electric 7/12-8/12/2025
15396 8/27/2025 45.16 Tillamook PUD SB Barn Electric 7/12-8/12/2025
19397 8/27/2025 200.00 TYLER HELLNER CDL Airbrake Upgrade

19398 8/27/2025 50.00 VERN RESSLER Board Meeting 08/20/2025

19399 8/30/2025 1,484.64 JIMMY SHUMAN FINAL CHECK ]S 8.30.2025

19422 8/22/2025 5,983.50 HRA VEBA TRUST AP HRA 8.2025

19422 8/22/2025 5,983.50 HRA VEBA TRUST AP HRA 8.2025

ACH 8/14/2025 3,470.90 Elan Financial Services Umpgua ACH 6/26-7/25/25
07.2025

ACH 8/15/2025 3,600.00 FLEETIO MAINTENANCE SOFTWARE ANNUAL
FLEETIO FEE 25-26

25

ACH POA 8/15/2025 254.45 Pacific Office Automation OFFICE COPIER LEASE 8.2025
8.2025

Date: 10/7/25 04:26:35 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1001 GEN CKG

13

Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register

1001 - General Checking Account #4558
From 8/1/2025 Through 8/31/2025

Docume... Document Transaction
Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description
Report Total 128,252.79

Date: 10/7/25 04:26:35 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1001 GEN CKG

Page: 2

14



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1006 - Payroll Checking #5614
From 8/1/2025 Through 8/31/2025

Document Document

Number Date Transaction Amount  Payee Transaction Description

ACH ADP 8/31/2025 1,056.70 ADP, LLC ADP MONTHLY SERVICE FEES
8.2025

ACH AFLAC 8/31/2025 531.06 AFLAC AFLAC 8.2025

8.25

Report Total 1,587.76

Date: 10/7/25 04:27:03 PM BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1006 STER PAYROLL Page: 1



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register

1009 - NW RIDES ACCOUNT #8510
From 8/1/2025 Through 8/31/2025

Docume... Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

4700 8/8/2025 24.59 Juliene J. Deputy Employee Recognition Meal

4701 8/8/2025 1,499.36 ASTOUND Phone Service 6/27-7/26/2025

4702 8/8/2025 6.27 CENTURYLINK Local Fax 7/21-8/20/2025

4703 8/8/2025 73.70 CRYSTAL AND SIERRA SPRINGS Water Service 7/9-7/26/2025

4704 8/8/2025 2,522.20 JANNA SMITH Vol MR July 2025

4705 8/8/2025 788.80 JOY WINKELHAKE Vol MR July 2025

4706 8/8/2025 5,652.70 KANDIS LIDAY Vol MR July 2025

4707 8/8/2025 249.20 LEANN CHUINARD Vol MR July 2025

4708 8/8/2025 4,040.00 Essential Credential Exchange NWR Compliance Company

4709 8/8/2025 4,455.70 SEAN REKART Vol MR July 2025

4710 8/8/2025 3,246.50 WILLIAM NERENBERG Vol MR June 2025

4711 8/14/2025 33.00 Oregon State Police NWR/TCTD Background Checks

4712 8/27/2025 251.00 MEDIX AMBULANCE NWR After Hours Service

4713 8/27/2025 23,591.20 QUICK CAB LLC Conversion on Van ADA Rear Entry

4714 8/27/2025 416.90 WILLTAM NERENBERG Vol MR July 2025

4715 8/27/2025 875.00 GenXsys Solutions, LLC 09/2025 NWR Computer Support
Services

4715 8/27/2025 475.54 GenXsys Solutions, LLC 09/2025 Server Storage Virus Plan

4715 8/27/2025 857.10 GenXsys Solutions, LLC 09/2025 Managed Service Fund

ACH POA 8/15/2025 254.45 Pacific Office Automation OFFICE COPIER LEASE 8.2025

8.25

Report Total 49,313.21

Date: 10/7/25 04:27:26 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1009 NWR ACCOUNT

Page: 1

16



Tillamook County Transportation District
Check/Voucher Register
1011 - Prop. Mgmt. Checking #7071
From 8/1/2025 Through 8/31/2025

Docume... Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

4780 8/8/2025 1,575.00 CHRISSY'S CLEANING SERVICE Admin. Janitorial July 2025

4781 8/8/2025 38.61 Rosenberg Builders Supply POA #58615 July 2025

4782 8/14/2025 74.00 American Backflow & Plumbing Backflow Test

4783 8/14/2025 194.78 City Of Tillamook Admin Water 7/1-7/31/2025

4784 8/14/2025 77.00 City Of Tillamook TVC Water 7/1-7/31/2025

4785 8/14/2025 190.10 City Sanitary Service Cardboard Recycling/Rent 1.5 YD
1XW July 2025

4786 8/14/2025 1,451.00 Marie Mills Center, Inc TVC Janitorial Services July 2025

4786 8/14/2025 55.39 Marie Mills Center, Inc TVC Janitorial Supplies July 2025

4786 8/14/2025 639.00 Marie Mills Center, Inc Admin. Janitorial Ser. July 2025

4786 8/14/2025 138.88 Marie Mills Center, Inc Admin. Janitorial Supplies July 2025

4787 8/27/2025 840.00 JNB MECHANICAL, INC. Quarterly Maintenance

4788 8/27/2025 123.04 Tillamook PUD TVC Electric 7/12-8/12/2025

4788 8/27/2025 617.41 Tillamook PUD Admin Electric 7/12-8/12/2025

Report Total 6,014.21

Date: 10/7/25 04:27:47 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1011 STER PROP MG Page: 1

17



Tillamook County Transportation District

Check/Voucher Register
1012 - NWOTA #4564

From 8/1/2025 Through 8/31/2025

Docume... Document Transaction

Number Date Amount Payee Transaction Description

3009 8/8/2025 4,801.49 Columbia Pacific Economic Q4 - 23/24 NWOTA Admin

3009 8/8/2025 4,841.52 Columbia Pacific Economic Q1 - 24/25 NWOTA Admin

3009 8/8/2025 5,652.80 Columbia Pacific Economic Q2 - 24/25 NWOTA Admin

3009 8/8/2025 6,288.99 Columbia Pacific Economic Q3 - 24/25 NWOTA Admin

3009 8/8/2025 6,624.68 Columbia Pacific Economic Q4 24/25 NWOTA Admin Services
Report Total 28,209.48

Date: 10/7/25 04:28:12 PM

BOARD - MONTHLY CHECK REGISTER - 1012 NWOTA CHECK

Page: 1

18



Date

07/30/25
07/30/25
07/31/25
08/01/25
08/01/25
08/04/25
08/04/25
08/04/25
08/04/25
08/04/25
08/05/25
08/06/25
08/11/25
08/14/25
08/15/25
08/18/25
08/18/25
08/22/25
08/22/25
08/22/25
08/25/25
08/25/25
08/25/25
08/25/25

07/31/25
08/04/25
08/07/25
08/14/25
08/14/25
08/14/25
08/14/25

07/29/25
07/31/25
08/05/25
08/06/25
08/07/25
08/11/25
08/13/25
08/19/25
08/20/25

APPROVAL

Vendor

Language Line
Language Line
Language Line
Language Line
Language Line
Stamps.com
Language Line
Stamps.com
Language Line
Onstar Services
Fieldprint
Language Line
Language Line
Amazon
Stamps.com
Onstar Services
Amazon

Iron Mountain
La Mexicana
Fred Meyer

Corral Grill & Taphouse

Franz
Adobe Inc
Safeway

SDAO

Google Cloud
Transittalent.com
Google Cloud
Google Cloud
Google Cloud
Google Cloud

TCCA Farm Store

Transport Wisdom

Averill Recycling
Fred Meyer
Expedia
Ecogaurd Pest

Transport Wisdom

Dominos
Vistaprint

UMPQUA BANK: CLOSING DATE 08/25/2025
Description of Transaction

CATHY BOND

NWR Phone/Interpreter

NWR Phone/Interpreter

NWR Phone/Interpreter

NWR Phone/Interpreter

NWR Phone/Interpreter

Postage

NWR PhonefInterpreter

NWR Postage Membership Fees

NWR Phone/Interpreter

Membership Fee - Shop Truck

NWR Background Check

NWR Phone/Interpreter

NWR Phone/interpreter

Maintenance - 12" Letter/Number Stencils
TCTD Postage Membership Fees
Membership Fee-Shop Truck Wi Fi

NWR Volunteer Driver Supplies

Office Shredder

Board Meeting Meal

Food - Cathy's Farewell Lunch
Administration - Employee Appreciation Meal
Food - Cathy's Farewell Lunch

Office Software

Cupcakes - Cathy's Farewell Lunch

BRIAN VITULLI

Board of Directors Training

Office Software

Marketing - Finance Supervisor Ad
Office Software

Office Software

Office Software

Office Software

MIKE REED

Operations - Lot Attendant Boots

Driver CDL Testing

Lawn Maintenance

Office Expense - Fitness Room Supplies
Travel/Training - Complaint to Conclusion Hotel
Facility Maintenance

Driver CDL Testing

Employee Recognition - Meal

Office Supplies - Business Cards

Charge Totals

Late Fees & Intrest Credit
Grand Total Due

DATE

Amount

$23.70
$27.65
$27.65
$23.70
$31.60
$50.00
$71.10
$10.99
$15.80
$15.00
$12.50
$39.50
$23.70
$25.98
$30.99
$11.99
$146.96
$183.98
$92.93
$5.49
$63.00
$12.87
$161.96
$132.55
$1,241.59

$85.00
$24.55
$135.00
$1.94
$20.51
$16.96
$24.55
$180.59

$110.99
$1,120.00
$25.00
$217.99
$160.02
$92.00
$560.00
$32.84
$149.95
$2,468.79

$3,890.97
$64.81
$3,826.16



JWOSEZEN SFISTPO00 1100 Le8+01L52928000029SNA £000-L000 14¥ |2 65080000

UMPQUA BANK

; August 2025 Statement

Lk

wA Open Date: 07/26/2025 Closing Date: 08/25/2025
Visa® Company Card with Rewards

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

New Balance $3,826.16

Minimum Payment Due $39.00

Payment Due Date 09/22/2025

Reward Points

Earned This Statement 4,184

Reward Center Balance 163,946
as of 08/24/2025

For details, see your rewards summary.

s~ Mail payment coupon
Vot e

Payment Options:

Please detach and send coupon with check payable to: Elan Financial Services

A

A, UMPQUA BANK

24-Hour Elan Financial Services: 1-865-552-8855

‘l . to pay by phone
i . to change your address

000008039 MUSB20DD082625104849 01 00000000 043645 003

=81 N L [T T L T [ TR O LT PRI [ P
. TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS

. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
% 3600 3RD ST STE A
“# TILLAMOOK OR 97141-2730

Page 1 of 4
Account: 7790
Elan Financial { 1-866-552-8855
Services
BUS 30 ELN 15
Activity Summary
Previous Balance + $3,470.90
Payments - $3,470.90cR
Other Credits - $63.96¢cRr
Purchases + $3,954 .93
Balance Transfers $0.00
Advances $0.00
Other Debits $0.00
Fees Charged - $41.00cr
Interest Charged - $23.81¢cR
New Balance = $3,826.16
Past Due $0.00
Minimum Payment Due $39.00
Credit Line $10,000.00
Available Credit $6.173.84
Days in Billing Period 31
Tillamook County
Transpeortation District
SEP 03,2025
Account_!&
Account__~ —
Approval
Pay online at s Pay by phone
<= myaccountaccess.com (| 1-866-552-8855
CPN 0014694560
.. 82k1LE"?
Account Number 7790
Payment Due Date 9/22/2025
New Balance $3,826.16
Minimum Payment Due $39.00

Amount Enclosed 3

Elan Financial Services

P.O. Box 790408
St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

AT TR TR TR TR TTI TR RO TR [ A
LT ITU R TUOE UU U TR B TR U T 20|u||h



ANOSEZEN $FOGF000 T 00 £88¥01L529280000HSNA E0D0-EDA0 €471 E 65080000

ﬁ UMPQUA BANK

£ August 2025 Statement 07/26/2025 - 08/25/2025 Page 2 of 4
A5 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Elan Financial Services (: 1-866-552-8855

Visa Business Rewards Company Card

Rewards Center Activity as of 08/24/2025
Rewards Center Activity* 0
Rewards Center Balance 163,946

*This item includes points redeemed, expired and adjusted.

This Year
Rewards Earned Statement to Date
Points Earned on Net Purchases 3,727 22,008
Gas, Restaurants & Telecom Double Points 457 3,678
Total Earned 4,184 25,686

Points Expiring on 09/30/2025: 16384

For rewards program inquiries and redemptions, call 1-888-229-8864 from 8:00 am to 10:00 pm (CST)
Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:30 pm (CST) Saturday and Sunday. Automated account information is
available 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.

Important Messages

Paying Interest: You have a 24 to 30 day interest-free period for Purchases provided you have paid your
previous balance in full by the Payment Due Date shown on your monthly Account statement. In order to
avoid additional INTEREST CHARGES on Purchases, you must pay your new balance in full by the
Payment Due Date shown on the front of your monthly Account statement.

There is no interest-free period for transactions that post to the Account as Advances or Balance Transfers

except as provided in any Offer Materials. Those transactions are subject to interest from the date they post
to the Account until the date they are paid in full.

Transactions BOND,CATHY ' Credit Limit $2500
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount  Notation
Purchases and Other Debits
07/30 07/29 6443 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $23.70
07/30 07/29 4393 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $27.85
07/31 07/30 9805 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $27.65
08/01 07/31 5224 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $23.70
08/01 07/31 1880 LANGUAGELINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $31.60
08/04 08/01 2289 STAMPS.COM 888-434-0055 DC $50.00
08/04 08/01 4230 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $71.10
08/04 08/02 6048 Stamps.com 512-8864006 CA $10.99
08/04 08/02 6291 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $15.80
08/04 08/03 9801 ONSTAR DATA PLAN AT&T 888-466-7827 TX $15.00
08/05 08/05 9894 FIELDPRINT 888-291-1369 PA $12.50
08/068 08/05 7483 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $39.50
08/11 08/08 0415 LANGUAGE LINE, INC. 800-7526096 CA $23.70
08/14 08/13 1598 AMAZON MKTPL*1A8BI4XW3 Amzn.com/bill WA $25.98
08/15 08/15 5047 Stamps.com 512-8864006 CA $3029,?

Continued on Next Page



JWOSEZEN SPOSPOD0 100 /B8F0LGZ92200U0EESNA £000-2000 ZLFL ¢ 65080000

A
%> UMPQUA BANK

August 2025 Statement 07/26/2025 - 08/25/2025

TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460)

Page 3 of 4

Elan Financial Services (: 1-866-552-8855

Transactions BOND,CATHY Credit Limit $2500
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
08/18 08/16 0043 OnStar, LLC 888-4667827 MI $11.99
08/18 08/17 0851 AMAZON MKTPL*NEOKP1FY3 Amzn.comv/bill WA $146.96
08/22 08/20 5704 BTS'IRONMOUNTAIN 800-899-4766 MA $183.98
08/22 08/20 0595 LA MEXICANA RESTAURANT TILLAMOOK OR $92.93
08/22 08/21 5886 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK OR $5.49
08/25 08/21 1593 CORRAL GRILL & TAPHOUS TILLAMOOK OR $63.00
08/25 0821 2660 FRANZ FAMILY BAKERY 90 TILLAMOOK OR $12.87
08/25 08/22 0081 Adobe Inc 800-8336687 CA $181.96
08/25 08/22 3366 SAFEWAY #2723 TILLAMOOK OR $132.55
Total for Account 2022 $1,241.59
Transactions REED MICHAEL Credit Limit $3500
Post Trans
Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
Purchases and Other Debits
07/29 07/28 4292 TILLAMOOK COUNTY CREAM TILLAMOOK OR $110.99
07/31 07/30 7455 IN*TRANSPORT WISDOM, 503-2741614 OR $1,120.00
08/05 08/04 3828 AVERILLRECYCLING TILLAMOOK OR $25.00
08/068 08/05 1724 FRED-MEYER #0377 TILLAMOOK OR $217.99
08/07 08/08 5344 EXPEDIA 73198271789264 EXPEDIA.COM WA $160.02
08/11 08/08 0015 ECOGUARD PEST OREGON 503-4332847 OR $92.00
08/13 08/12 0363 IN*TRANSPORT WISDOM, 503-2741614 OR $560.00
08/19 08/17 8156 DOMINOS 7140 TILLAMOCK OR $32.84
08/20 08/18 9759 VISTAPRINT 866-207-4955 MA $149.05
Total for Account 9595 $2,468.79

Transactions

Post
Date

08/14

08/14

08/14

08/14

07/31

Trans
Date

07/30

VITULLLBRIANA

Ref #

2042

2937

2939

2935

0188

Transaction Description
Other Credits

PROV FR CR GOOGLE*CLOUD LKLKVE # 9804
CREDIT ADJUSTMENT

PROV FR CR GOOGLE *CLOUD NSSBX # 2962
CREDIT ADJUSTMENT

PROV FR CR Google CLOUD XN32zQ # 8055
CREDIT ADJUSTMENT

PROV FR CR Google CLOUD zWX3w2 # 3213
CREDIT ADJUSTMENT

Purchases and Other Debits
SDAO -* 2025 BOARD OF WWW.SDAO.COM OR

Continued on Next Page

Credit Limit $10000

Amount Notation

$1.94cR
$20.51cr
$16.96¢cR

$24.55¢cR

$85.00
22



HWOSBHZHN GPISFO00 100 LB8POLGEGZE0000288NA0 E000-E000 £4¥ | & 6080000

ﬁ UMPQUA BANK

T¢ August 2025 Statement 07/26/2025 - 08/25/2025 Page 4 of 4
##5 TILLAMOOK CNTY TRANS (CPN 001469460) Elan Financial Services {{  1-866-552-8855
Transactions VITULLI,BRIAN A Credit Limit $10000
Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation

08/04 08/01 3213 Google CLOUD 2ZWX3w2 650-2530000 CA $24.55

08/07 08/06 0088 TRANSITTALENT.COM  310-3757957 CA $135.00

Total for Account 2946 $180.59

Transactions BILLING ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

Post Trans

Date Date Ref# Transaction Description Amount Notation
Payments and Other Credits
08/14 08/14 PAYMENT THANK YOU $3,470.90cr
Fees

08/14 08/14 REVERSAL OF LATE PAYMENT FEE $41.00cr

TOTAL FEES FOR THIS PERIOD $41.00cr
interest Charged

08/14 08/14 INTEREST REVERSAL $23.43cr

08/14 08/14 INTEREST REVERSAL $0.25cr

08/14 08/14 INTEREST REVERSAL $0.09¢cr

08/14 08/14 INTEREST REVERSAL $0.04cr
TOTAL INTEREST FOR THIS PERIOD $23.81cr
Total for Account . 7790 $3,535.71crR

2025 Totals Year-to-Date

Total Fees Charged in 2025 $0.00
Total Interest Charged in 2025 $65.03

Interest Charge Calculation

Your Annual Percentage Rate (APR) is the annual interest rate on your account.

**APR for current and future transactions.

Balance Annual Expires
Balance Subject to Interest Percentage with
Balance Type By Type Interest Rate Variable Charge Rate Statement
**BALANCE TRANSFER $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 16.49%
“*PURCHASES $3,826.16 $0.00 YES $0.00 16.49%
“*ADVANCES $0.00 $0.00 YES $0.00 28.24%
Contact Us
" Phone ? Questions Mail payment coupon \{/ Online
E - with a check =
Voice:  1-866-552-8855 Elan Financial Services Elan Financial Services myaccountaccess.com
TDD:  1-888-352.5455 P.O. Box 6353 P.O. Box 790408
Fax: 1-866-807-9053 Fargo, ND 58125-6353 St. Louis, MO 63179-0408

End of Statement 23



FRED MEYER CARD CHARGES -7/23-8/22/2025

Date Description of Transaction Amount
CARD #3 - KERI BROWN, ADMIN ASSISTANT
07/23/25|Office Expense - Speakers $ 44.98
07/31/25|Office Expense - Microwave b 108.37
08/04/25|Marketing - Fair $ 45.44
08/05/25|Marketing - Fair 5 17.97
08/14/25| Office Expense - Training Room Snacks 3 65.56
08/14/25|Transit Center Office Expense - Kitchen Supplies $ 45.85
08/14/25|Office Expense - Kitchen Supplies $ 20.96
01-001-5190-999-00| $ 63.41
01-001-5170-999-00| § 285.72
Total| $ 349.13
CARD #4 - CATHY BOND, FINANCE SUPERVISOR
07/21/25|Employee Beareavement $ 50.00
07/21/25|Office Expense - Card $ 5.69
01-001-5180-999-00| $ 50.00
01-001-5170-999-00| § 5.69
Total| $ 55.69
Grand Total| $ 404.82
DATE APPROVAL

24




Tillamook County Transportation District

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE REPORT August 2025

RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE Aug Aug YTD YTD YTD %
2025 2024 FY 25-26 FY 24-25 Change

Dial-A-Ride Service

Tillamook County 335 381 713 703 1.4%
Program 97 522 231 954 -75.8%
Dial-A-Ride Total 432 903 944 1,657 -43.0%

Deviated Fixed Route Service

Rt 1: Town Loop 3,472 3,512 6,997 7,109 -1.6%
Rt 2: Netarts/Oceanside 215 262 472 518 -8.9%
Rt 3: Manzanita/Cannon Beach 2,444 2,518 4,860 5,031 -3.4%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 898 1,085 1,933 2,159 -10.5%
Rt 6: Port of Tillamook Bay Loop 365 256 714 531 34.5%
Pacific City Free Shuttle 554 0 1,089 0 100.0%
Local Fixed Rt Total 7,948 7,633 16,065 15,348 4.7%

Intercity Service

Rt 5: Portland 779 846 1,559 1,665 -6.4%
Inter City Total 779 846 1,559 1,665 -6.4%
TOTAL ALL SERVICES 9,159 9,382 18,568 18,670 -0.5%
ONE-WAY TRIPS BY USER GROUP (Allocated)

Fixed YTD YTD YTD %
USER GROUP Route DAR FY 25-26 FY 24-25| Change
General (18 years to 60 years of age) 4,887 69 10,072 10,514 -4.2%
Senior/Disabled 2,688 346 6,212 6,880 -9.7%
Child/Youth 570 17 1,195 1,275 -6.3%
Total 8,145 432 17,479 18,670 -6.4%
OTHER RIDER CATEGORIES Fixed YTD YTD YTD %

Route DAR FY 25-26 FY 24-25| Change
Ride Connection 81 148 160 -7.5%
Tillamook Bay Community College 144 247 368 -32.9%
NWOTA Visitor Pass 122 188 138 36.2%
NW Rides 60 164 N/A N/A
Youth Free 871 1,729 1,816 -4.8%
Amtrak 73 141 164 -14.0%
Bicycles 203 434 N/A N/A

25



TCTD Operations

Statistics &
Performance
August 2025




YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE

RAW PASSENGER COUNTS

1559 1665 1657

OUNTY DEVIATED FIXED ROUTE INTERCITY DIAL-A-RIDE

®Aug-25 = Aug-24

4
I 27



IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE
YTD COMPS

RT 1 (TOWN LOOP) RT 2 RT 3 (CANNON BEACH) RT 4 (LINCOLN CITY) RT 6 (PORT LOOP) PC SHUTTLE
(NETARTS/OCEANSIDE)

Aug-25 = Aug-24

28



DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE
YTD COMPS

TILLAMOOK COUNTY PROGRAM

wAug-25 mAug-24

29



PASSENGER CATEGORIES
YTD COMPS

RIDE CONNECTION

TILLAMOOK BAY NWOTA VISITOR PASS YOUTH FREE AMTRAK
COMMUNITY COLLEGE

Aug-25 = Aug-24

BICYCLES

30



Primary Performance Measures Report
thru August 2025

Passengers Cost Cost Farebox
per Hour per Trip per Hour Return %

Dial-A-Ride
Dial-A-Ride 2.2 $ 61.42 § 133.49 12.1%
NW Rides 0.6 $ 21521 § 132.08 18.3%
Total 1.3 $ 99.06 $§ 132.74 15.4%
Deviated Route
Rt 1. Town Loop 117 $ 1123 § 131.80 4.4%
Rt 2: Oceanside 3.7 $ 36.44 $ 135.41 1.3%
Rt 6: PORT 9.4 $ 15.68 $§ 147.07 7.0%
Rt 3: Manzanita 5.1 $ 30.05 $§ 152.81 1.9%
Rt 4: Lincoln City 3.1 $ 53.50 $§ 163.63 1.1%
Total 8.7 $ 2219 §  149.32 2.3%
Intercity
Rt 5: Portland 26 ) 4186 $ 110.80 10.1%
FY 2025-26 YTD 5.0 $ 27.82 $ 139.94 6.6%
FY 2024-25YTD 4.5 $ 23.57 $ 106.59 17.0%
Percent Change 11.2% 18.0% 31.3% -61.3%

O:\OPERATIONS\Ridership Tracking\2025 MIS\TCTD MIS Report AUG 2025 V.1
31



Tillamook County Transportation District August 2025

MONTHLY PERFORMANCE

Service Passengers Farebox Cost
Month per Hour Return % per Hour

Dial-A-Ride Services

Aug-24 1:9 42.6% 105.45
May-25 1.5 38.6% 130.40
Jun-25 1.5 35.9% 130.42

Jul-25 1.2 17.4% 129.29
Aug-25 1.3 15.4% 132.74

Deviated Fixed Routes

Aug-24 6.4 3.6% 112.68
May-25 5.9 2.5% 143.17
Jun-25 9.9 3.2% 140.58

Jul-25 6.8 2.6% 149.83
Aug-25 6.7 2.3% 149.32

Intercity Services

Aug-24 2.8 26.7% 106.24
May-25 2 9.6% 159.46
Jun-25 2 9.6% 155.95

Jul-25 2.6 10.1% 110.28
Aug-25 2.6 10.1% 110.80

Dial-a-Ride includes County-wide DAR, NW Rides, Veterans Transportation
Deviated Fixed Routes: 1 Town Loop, 2 Oceanside, 3 Manzanita/Cannon Beach,
4 Lincoln City, 6 POTB Loop

Intercity Routes: 5 Portland

32



NWCONNECTOR

Coordinating Committee In-Person Meeting
October 10, 2025 | 10:00a - Noon
Tillamook County Transportation District
3600 3" Street, Tillamook OR

Join Zoom Meeting:
https://usO2web.zoom.us/j/87552290259

Call In: 1 253 215 8782
Meeting ID: 875 5229 0259

Agenda
10:00- .
10:05a 4% Introductions Cynda Bruce
<+ Consent Calendar
September Meeting Minutes
10:05 - Financial Report v Cynda Bruce/All
10:30a Emissions/Ridership Tracking
Bus Stop Project Update
=% NWConnector Enhancements
10:30- e Shelter Poster Revisions
11:20a e Visitor Passes All
e Marketing
11:20-
11:45a % Valley-to-Coast Ridership All
11:45- n
12:00p Member Updates All
Attachments:

September Meeting Minutes
Ridership/Passenger Mile Tracking

Meetings are open to the public and accommodations will be provided to persons with disabilities. If
a sign language interpreter is needed, please call Sarah Lu Heath at 971.328.2877 at least 48 hours
prior to the meeting.

www.nwconnector.org

{HE

9% w"L
Hinyle i W SuU \S‘L,IV EMPIRE
Benton County ; ﬁ e TRANSPORTATION

DISTRICT
TRANSPORTATION



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87552290259

NW Oregon Transit Alliance
Meeting Minutes
September 12, 2025

Attending:, Cynda Bruce, David Carr, Cody Franz, Jennifer Geisler, Sarah Lu Heath, Arla
Miller, Charlene Pech, and Brian Vitulli.

Consent Calendar: Ridership tracking and financials were reviewed by the group. Brian
Vitulli moved to accept consent calendar, second by David Carr, passed unanimously.

Bus Stop update: The TCTD Board approved the final design contract in August. The
project will be awarded to Jacobs Engineering. The working timeline is to have construction
on all three bus stops completed by Autumn 2026. The group shared background on the
bus stop project with David Carr to help onboard him as the new SETD Director.

Oregon Public Transportation Conference: November 2-6 in Bend. Brian Vitulli is serving
on the Conference Program Committee. He will also be presenting a session on NWOTA’s
Zero Emission Fleet Transition. Additionally, Logan Hoffman from MAC will also be
presenting a session on Using Data to Improve Rider Experience.

Zero Emissions: [t was noted that ODOT is starting a Zero Emissions TA program, which
could help NWOTA continue work on our ZE plan such as engineering for infrastructure
improvements for electrification.

David shared some of his experience with hydrogen fuel cell projects in Reno and Austin.

The group also discussed a proposal from the NW Alliance for Clean Transportation. They
are offering Technical Assistance to review the feasibility of using renewable natural gas for
vehicle fuel. Brian Vitulli made a motion to further explore this opportunity, and that motion
was seconded by David Carr.

Oregon Sustainability Board: Cynda shared invitation details: NWOTA has been asked to
present regarding the background of the Alliance and our mission toward lowering
emissions. The OSB will be meeting in Lincoln City on September 25™. Cynda Bruce, Brian
Vitulli, and Sarah Lu Heath will attend in-person.

Website Updates: Logan Hoffman from MAC joined the meeting to share updates to
nwconnector.org. Work completed includes, updates to the interactive search function, the
homepage map, and adding a more dominant link to access the interactive map. The group
agreed to make these changes live.

Brian Vitulli noted that Route 6 is not shown on the Homepage Map. MAC will work with him
to get the graphic updated.

34



MAC continues to work on live bus tracking. At the moment, SETD is not consistently
viewable, BAT and LCT are still working on on-bus equipment. AVL and GPS are barriers to
reliable deployment. BAT is using Verizon as a GPS tracker because Benton County Public
Works uses this vendor. This system is not the best for transit as it pings far less.

LCT learned that Swiftly did not provide all of the equipment needed for the system to work.
Harnesses have now been acquired and are being installed as capacity allows. Work
continues to deploy live-bus-tracking on nwconnector.org.

MAC will be reviewing APls to see what new buses have come online.
NWOTA unanimously agreed to publish interactive map updates.

Route 3: TCTD currently ends Route 3 at the Midtown Stop on Hemlock Street in Cannon
Beach. TCTD would also like to serve the existing SETD stop at Spruce & 2" on the route to
better serve riders. This will provide another connection opportunity in north Cannon
Beach for TCTD and SETD customers.

Member Updates:

SETD: Received four new buses, three of which are inoperable or not up to standard. It’s
been several years since the agency acquired news buses, so they are eager to resolve
issues with NW Bus, the provider. Mechanics are keeping buses in good condition, running
over 400,000 miles. Also working on hiring drivers and implementing their micro transit
pilot project.

ColPac: Contracting continues with ODOT for Transportation Options. Currently, ODOT
expects to finalize the process in mid-November.

BAT: Self Perform Analysis is underway. 99W pilot project continues, at the vendor
contracting stage. This will go from Junction City to McMinnville.

TCTD: Recently hired drivers that have been trained and are working out well. They are still
seeking to hire a few more drivers. While still seeking to return to seven day a week service,
the workforce level can’t supportityet. TCTD is also seeking a new Finance Director. They
are also working on an on-board rider survey to inform their Transit Development Plan.
Work continues on bus stops in Garibaldi in alignment with ODOT’s streetscaping work.

ODOT: Yamhill Transit will be transitioning leadership and a posting for their Executive
Director position is expected to be published soon.

35



Arla shared that ODOT is going to cover GTFS data for agencies. Arla inquired as to whether

NWOTA would be a pilot for this program since Trillium already has our data. The group
agreed to participate.

Due to the State/Federal situation regarding withholding federal funds from Oregon due to
Sanctuary State status, FTA/ODOT contracts are not being executed by some agencies as

they fear committing to provide services without certainty that those funds would be
reimbursed.

LCT: Working on FTA contracts.

Meeting adjourned at 12:15pm.

36



NW Rides September 2024 vs 2025

NW Rides Trips Provided

2025_
Providers
2024 _

- -
MR
2024_

e e 2024 Total Trips= 6,131

2024

2025 Total Trips= 6,143

37



NW Rides September 2024 vs 2025
NW Rides Miles Driven

Providers
2024 _
MR
2024_
2025
Volunteers

2025 Total Miles Driven= 177,053

2024

2024 Total Miles Driven=176,781
38



NW Rides Call Center

ANSWERED #2063 Calls

4 CSR’s = /000 calls per person
=~ 23 calls per-business day



Tillamook County Transportation District

“Connecting the community through sustainable transit services”

DATE: October 15, 2025

TO: TCTD Board of Directors
FROM: Brian Vitulli, General Manager
SUBJECT: GENERAL MANAGER REPORT

Administration/Coordination

On September 25 in Lincoln City, presented to the Oregon Sustainability Board with other
NWOTA partners. Covered how NWOTA was formed, its goals, successes and challenges, and
how the services we provide and coordinate are making an impact on the northwest coast of
Oregon.

Attended OTA Board meeting on October 7.

Attended OTA Conference Program Committee meeting on October 8.

Working with community partners and employment agencies/employee placement
organizations to recruit transit drivers.

Upon approval by the TCTD Board of Directors at the August 20, 2025 meeting, the MOA
between TCTD, the YMCA, and the Tillamook Adventist School was fully executed and service
began on September 2.

Attended NWACT meeting on October 9.

Attended NWOTA meeting on October 10.

Offer extended to candidate for the Finance Supervisor position and was accepted. Starting
date to be determined.

Planning & Development

Ongoing coordination with consultant team to discuss the District’s Cost Allocation
Methodology and Performance Monitoring System project and the upcoming on-board rider
survey.

Attended the Tillamook County Transportation System Plan Project Advisory Committee
meeting on October 2.

Attended the CHNA/CHIP workshop on October 2.

PSA with Jacobs Engineering, Inc. was fully executed and the notice to proceed was provided.
Project kickoff meeting was held on October 7. The NW Connector Bus Stop Access Project
includes final design and permitting for three locations (Pacific City, Hebo, Waldport), and a

3600 THIRD ST. STE A, TILLAMOOK OR 97141 « (503) 8158283 ¢ FAX (503) 815-8005
WWW.TILLAMOOKBUS.COM

40



Page |2

NEPA analysis of the Hebo location. The project will then proceed with construction with

completion expected in October 2026.

Grant Funding

* The purchase and installation of bus stop infrastructure at six locations on U.S. 101 in
Garibaldi has been granted approval by ODOT’s Permitting Office. Still waiting for sign-off by
the local municipality.

Facility/Property Management

+ Transit Center exterior / platform cleaning occurs weekly and on an as-needed basis.

Operations/Vehicle Maintenance

+ Beginning the procurement process for three, low-floor replacement buses funded with
federal formula funds (FTA Section 5311).

« Four new Category B buses have completed the procurement process and have been ordered.
Preliminary delivery date is January 30, 2026.

« Two new category B buses are being manufactured and will be delivered in late 2025.

« Two heavy-duty Category B trolley-replica buses have been ordered and delivery is expected
by late summer 2026.

+ Two Category E1 DAR vans are being manufactured and are scheduled for delivery in October

2025.

3600 THIRD ST. STE A, TILLAMOOK OR 97141 « (503) 8158283 ¢ FAX (503) 815-2834
WWW.TILLAMOOKBUS.COM

41



Tillamook County Transportation District
Board of Directors Regular Monthly Meeting
Wednesday, September 17, 2025 — 6:00PM
Transportation Building

3600 Third Street, Tillamook, OR

Meeting Minutes

Regular Meeting September 17, 2025

1. Call to Order: Board Chair Bean called the meeting to order at 6:01 pm.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Roll Call:
Present
TCTD Board of Directors
Gary Hanenkrat, Director
Marni Johnston, Treasurer
Jonathan Bean, Chair
David McCall, Director
Nan Devlin, Director
Eric Sappington, Director
Vern Ressler, Director

Absent
TCTD Board of Directors
None

TCTD Staff
Brian Vitulli, General Manager

Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor (via Zoom)

Jules Deputy, Brokerage Manager

Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent
Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk

Guest

Arla Miller, ODOT Public Transportation Division (via Zoom)

4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda

Motion by Director McCall to Approve Announcements and Changes to Agenda.

Seconded by Director Sappington.

Motion Passed

By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, Hanenkrat,

Sappington, Johnston, McCall, and Devlin

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

42



Regular Meeting September 17, 2025

Public & Guest Comments:

ODOT PTD Arla Miller: Shared how she enjoys working with the staff here and
appreciates everyone.

Executive Session: None.

Second Reading of Ordinance No. 3: Amending Ordinance No. 3 — Establishing
Regulations Governing Conduct on District Property.

STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT

8.

9.

Financial and Grant Report: Financials for July 2025 are included in the Board
packet pages 10-34.

Service Performance Reports: Statistics for July 2025 are included in the Board
packet pages 35-42.

10.Northwest Oregon Transit Alliance: Updates for June 2025 and July 2025 are

11.

included in the Board packet pages 43-47.

NW Rides Brokerage: Statistics for August 2025 are included in the Board packet
page 48-51.

Brokerage Manager Deputy stated that there was an investment with Quick Cab to
help purchase a wheelchair van.

Director Johnston asked how was this funded, Brokerage Manager Deputy stated that
it was through CareOregon.

Director Hanenkrat asked if all the dialysis patients were back in Tillamook at the new
center. Brokerage Manager Deputy stated that not all are back due to availability.

12.General Manager Report: Updates included in Board packet pages 52-53 (see GM

Report in packet for details):
a. Administration/Coordination
b. Planning Development
c. Grant Funding
d. Facility/Property Development
e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance

Director McCall asked if the presentation of the Zero Emission Fleet Transition Plan
in December is for the Board. GM Vitulli said no that this is a presentation to an outside

group.

13.Miscellaneous: None.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation

marks report a speaker’s exact words.

43



Regular Meeting September 17, 2025

CONSENT CALENDAR

14.Motion to Approve the Minutes of August 20, 2025, Regular Board Meeting

Motion by Director Devlin to Approve the Minutes of August 20, 2025, Regular Board
Meeting. Seconded by Director McCall.

Motion Passed

By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, Hanenkrat,

Sappington, Johnston, McCall, and Devlin.

15.Motion to Approve July 2025 Financial Statements

Motion by Director Johnston to Approve July 2025 Financial Statement. Seconded
by Director Devlin.
Motion Passed
By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, Hanenkrat,
Sappington, Johnston, McCall, and Devlin.

ACTION ITEMS

16.Resolution 25-30 Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Amendment
Number 1 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number 35652

Director McCall stated that they are already into the effective date of June 2025, will
it be assured that this funding will continue into 2026. GM Vitulli stated that it is
unknown if there will be a future extension to the effective date or if we will receive a
new agreement. ODOT PTD Arla Miller stated they helped distribute the funds for the
veterans’ healthcare transportation services but it is not known at this time if there will
be any future extended effective dates.

Motion by Director McCall to approve Resolution 25-30 Authorizing the General

Manager to Execute Amendment Number 1 to ODOT Grant Agreement Number
35652. Seconded by Director Sappington.

Motion Passed

By Chair Bean, Directors Ressler, Hanenkrat,

Sappington, Johnston, McCall and Devlin.

DISCUSSION ITEMS

17.Staff Comments
General Manager Vitulli: None
Admin Assistant Brown: Wished FS Bond a Happy Birthday and she is missed.

Finance Supervisor Bond: Stated that she thanks everyone and is happy to still help
until a new Finance Supervisor is found.

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

44



Regular Meeting September 17, 2025
Brokerage Manager Deputy: None
Operations Superintendent Reed: None
18.Board of Directors’ Comments

Dir. Hanenkrat: Asked if we are going to be using the Trolley for anything else and the
new Trolleys that are coming in. GM Vitulli stated that the existing Trolley will continue
to be used for the PC Shuttle and events like parades and the new trolley buses will
be put into regular revenue service.

Dir. Devlin: Asked if the trolley could be used for event transportation for people
staying at different hotels. GM Vitulli stated that federal and state regulations do not
allow the District to provide charter-type service for private events.

Dir. Ressler: Asked if there are different bike rack designs that make it easier for
people to load bicycles on the front of buses. GM Vitulli stated that NWOTA adopted
a revised bike policy in April 2025, and that riders are responsible for loading their
bikes. There is a weight limit for the racks as it puts too much torque onto the racks.
If rack is full, they are loaded into the back compartment. The new buses that are
coming in will have wider trays to accommodate wider bicycle tires.

Dir. Sappington: None

Dir. Johnston: None

Dir. McCall: None

Chair Bean: Stated that he was on vacation and was able to see the other commuter
buses on the coast.

19. Adjournment: Board Chair Bean adjourned the meeting at 7:03 pm.

These minutes were approved on this 15 of October 2025.

ATTEST:

Jonathan Bean, Board Chair Brian Vitulli, General Manager

These minutes contain materials which paraphrase and/or summarize statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation
marks report a speaker’s exact words.

45



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE
TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

An Ordinance Establishing )
Regulations Governing Conduct ) ORDINANCE NO. 3
On District Property )

The Board of Directors of Tillamook County Transportation District does herby
ordain and decrees the following Ordinance:

1.05 To facilitate the purposes set forth in ORS Chapter 267, and for the safety,
convenience, and comfort of District Passengers and for the protection and preservation
of District property, it is necessary to establish the following rules and regulations
governing use of District facilities and providing remedies for violations thereof.

1.10 Definitions. As used in this Ordinance, unless the context requires otherwise:

(1)
(2)

3)

(7)
(8)

“District” means the Tillamook County Transportation District.

“District Appeals Officer” means any person designated by the District
General Manager to hear appeals to Notices of Exclusion.

"District Facility” includes the District Administrative Facility, the Transit
Visitor Center any other District transit bus stop, any bus passenger shelter,
any District-operated parking lot or park-and-ride lot, covered areas of any
bus stop, and any lands and rights of way that are owned, leased, held, or
used for the purposes of providing public transportation services.

“District Transit System” means the property, equipment and improvements
of whatever nature owned, leased or controlled by the District to provide
public transportation for passengers or to provide for movement of people,
and includes any District Vehicle and any District Facility.

The “Boarding Platform Area” of the Transit Visitor Center are designated
on the attached Map. Boarding Platform Areas at bus stops within public
rights-of-way are limited to eight feet from bus doors while buses are
loading/unloading. Boarding Platform Areas at other locations
owned/controlled by the District shall be eight feet from the curb where
buses load/unload passengers.

A “shelter” is the area within the drip line of any structure located at a District
bus stop that is designed or used to protect District customers from adverse
weather conditions.

“District Vehicle” includes a bus, van or other vehicle used to transport
passengers or a vehicle owned or operated by or on behalf of the District.
“‘Emergency” includes, but is not limited to, a fire on a District Vehicle or
Facility, or serious physical injury to person, or threat thereof, or any
apparently urgent medical need.

“Operator” means a District employee responsible for operating any District
Vehicle.

1

45039-27477 4898-9210-2751.2

46



1.15

(11)
(12)

(13)

(14)

“‘Passenger” means a person who holds a valid fare, or is otherwise
authorized a free or reduced fare, and is en route on a District Vehicle, or
waiting for the next available District Vehicle, to such person’s destination,
or a person who enters a District Facility with the intent to purchase a valid
fare for transportation on the next available District Vehicle to such person’s
destination.

“Police Officer” shall have the meaning as defined in ORS 181.610.
“Safety and Inspector Officer” means a person other than a “Police Officer”
authorized by the General Manager to demand proof of fare payment and
to issue citations as provided in this ordinance.

“Supervisor” means any District employee responsible for the supervision
of any District transit operation.

“Service Animal” means any animal used by a person who requires the
assistance of such animal to facilitate that person’s life functions, including
but not limited to seeing and hearing.

Regulations:

(1)

(2)

3)

(5)

(6)

Elderly and Disabled Seating. The seats at the front of buses are reserved

for the use of disabled and senior Passengers. Non-qualifying passengers

must vacate such seating upon request of any District Vehicle operator or

employee.

Smoking Prohibited. No person shall smoke tobacco or any other

substance, or carry any burning or smoldering substance, in any form,

aboard a District vehicle or within the boundaries of any District transit

facility; except smoking may be permitted at a District facility within any

posted area designated as a “SMOKING AREA.” The General Manager or

her/his designee may designate appropriate areas where smoking is

permitted.

Alcohol and Drugs. No person shall use or possess alcohol or illegal drugs

on a District Vehicle or Facility, except for lawfully possessed and unopened

alcoholic beverages.

Criminal Activity. No person shall engage in any activity prohibited by

State, County or Municipal Law of Oregon while on a District vehicle, or

within any District Facility or the District Transit System.

Disorderly Conduct. No person shall intentionally or recklessly cause

inconvenience, annoyance or alarm to another by:

(@) Engaging in fighting, or violent, tumultuous or threatening behavior
(physical or verbal), within any District Vehicle or District Facility;

(b) Making unreasonable noise within any District Vehicle or in any
District Facilities;

(c) Obstructing the free movement of passengers within any District
Vehicle or District Facility;

(d)  Creating a hazardous or physically offensive condition within a
District Vehicle or District Facility;

(e)  Otherwise violate ORS 166.025 as now in effect or hereafter
amended.

Harassment. No person shall intentionally or recklessly harass or annoy

another person by:

(@)  Subjecting such other person to offensive physical contact;

2

45039-27477 4898-9210-2751.2

47



(7)

(9)

(11)

(b)  Publicly insulting such other person by abusive words or gestures in
a manner intended and likely to provoke a violent response; or

(c) Otherwise violate ORS 166.065 as now in effect or hereafter amended.

Threatening or Offensive Lanquage. No person shall intentionally or

recklessly disturb, harass, or intimidate another person by means of

threatening or offensive language, or obscenities in a District Vehicle or in

a District Facility in such a manner as to interfere with a passenger’'s use

and enjoyment of the transit system.

Food and Beverages. For the protection of public safety, no person shall

bring aboard a District Vehicle any food or beverage in open containers. No

person shall consume food or alcohol on any District Vehicle. Passengers
on District Vehicles may consume non-alcoholic beverages only from
containers with snap-on or screw-on lids.

Littering, Spitting. No person shall discard or deposit, other than into a

trash receptacle provided for that purpose, any rubbish, trash, debris,

cigarette butts, or offensive substance in or upon a District Vehicle or District

Facility. No person shall spit, defecate, or urinate in or upon any District

Vehicle or District Facility except in a toilet.

Interfering with Public Transportation. No person shall:

(@) Intentionally or knowingly enter unlawfully or remain unlawfully in or
on a District Vehicle or District Facility;

(b) Intentionally or knowingly interfere with the provision or use of public
transportation services by, among other things, interfering with the
movement of, or access to, District Vehicles;

(c) While in or on a District Vehicle or District Facility, engage in
disorderly conduct in the second degree as defined in ORS 166.025;

(d)  Subject a District passenger, employee, agent or Police Officer to
offensive physical contact; or

(e)  Otherwise violate ORS 166.116 as now in effect or hereafter
amended.

Safety.

(@)  All passengers (except infants who are held) must wear shoes,
pants/shorts and shirt, a dress, or comparable clothing on District
Vehicles and in District Facilities. In addition, all passengers must
cover any exposed skin that may transmit communicable disease.

(b)  No person shall in any manner hang onto, or attach himself or herself
onto any exterior part of a District Vehicle at any time. In addition, no
person shall extend any portion of his or her body through any door
or window of a District Vehicle.

(c) No person shall ride a skateboard, roller skates or in-line skates in
a District Vehicle or District Facility. Passengers with in-line skates
will be allowed in a District Vehicle or District Facility so long as the
wheels are rendered inoperable by a device (“skate guard”) designed
to provide stability and traction to the user and to permit the user to
walk while wearing the skates.

(d) No person shall discharge any weapon or throw, or cause to be
thrown or projected, any object at or within a District Vehicle or

3

45039-27477 4898-9210-2751.2

48



(12)

(13)

(e)
(f)

District Facility, or at any person on a District Vehicle or in any part
of a District Facility.

No person shall interfere, in any manner, with the safe operation or
movement of any District Vehicle.

No person shall impede or block the free movement of passengers,
or otherwise disrupt the functions of the District in any District Facility
Boarding Platform Area, or in any District Vehicle.

Damaging or Defacing District Property. No person shall:

(@)
(b)

Draw graffiti or any other writing on any District Vehicle or any other
District Property; or

In any manner damage, destroy, interfere with, or obstruct in any
manner, the property, services, or facilities of the District.

District Property.

(@)

(b)

(c)

(f)

(9)

Use of the District Transit System. The Transit System is intended
for the use of the District's passengers. To ensure the safety,
comfort, and convenience of such passengers, no person shall
impede or block the free movement of passengers, interfere with
ingress and egress from District Facilities and Vehicles, intimidate or
harass other passengers, or in any manner interfere with the
principal transportation purpose to which the Transit System is
dedicated.

Limited Access Areas. To ensure the safety, comfort, and
convenience of District passengers and the safe and efficient
operation of the Transit System, only passengers, District personnel,
and those transacting District business shall be permitted within any
District administrative facility, customer service center, shelter,
District Vehicle, and on any District Boarding Platform area.
Off-hours Closure. All District Facilities shall be closed during

non-operating hours. No person other than Police Officers, District
personnel, or persons authorized by the District shall be in or about
any District Facility during hours in which that District Facility is
closed to the general public.

District’s Right of Closure. The District expressly reserves the right
to close any District Facilities and exclude all access at a time and
for a duration to be determined by the District Board or General
Manager. Such closure may be necessary for reasons that include,
but are not limited to, an emergency, natural disaster, cleaning, or
repairs.

Damaging District Property. No person shall damage, destroy,
interfere with, or obstruct in any manner the property, services, or
facilities of the District.

Exclusion of Non-District Vehicles. Unless otherwise allowed by
posted sign, all non-District vehicles are excluded from District
Facilities. Emergency vehicles and other vehicles authorized by the
District are exempt from this exclusion.

Free Movement of District Vehicles. No person or vehicle shall
obstruct the free movement of District Vehicles while loading or

4

45039-27477 4898-9210-2751.2

49



(14)

(17)

(18)
(19)

(20)

unloading Passengers, or while entering or exiting a District
Facilities.

(h)  Skateboards, In-line Skates, Bicycles. No person shall ride a
bicycle, skateboard or in-line skates at a District Facilities. Bicycles
shall only be parked at a District Facility designated areas.

Animals. No person shall bring or carry aboard a District Vehicle, or take
into a District Facility, any animal not housed in an enclosed carrying
container, except for a person who requires a service animal, or a person
training a service animal. In no event, however, shall any animal be allowed
on a District Vehicle or at a District Facility if such animal creates a hazard
to any passenger or District employee.

Carriages and Strollers. No person shall bring or carry aboard a District

Vehicle a carriage or stroller unless such item is folded and unoccupied.

Carriages and strollers must remain folded while aboard the District Vehicle.

Packages. Any packages or parcels brought aboard a District Vehicle must

be able to be stored on and/or below one seat (if available), and must be

secured so as to prevent their displacement should the Vehicle be required
to make a sudden stop or sharp turn. In no event shall any package or parcel
be allowed to block access to any aisle or stairway.

Radios. No person shall play radios, or other audio devices or musical

instruments on a District Vehicle or in a District Facility, unless the sound

produced thereby is only audible through earphones to the person carrying
the device.

Emergency Exit. No person shall activate the “Emergency Exit” or alarm

devise of a District Vehicle or Facility in the absence of an emergency.

District Seats. No person shall place his or her feet on seat cushions on

any District Vehicle or in any District Facility.

Posting Notices. Except as otherwise allowed by District regulation, no

person shall place, permit or cause to be placed any notice or advertisement

upon any District Vehicle, or on any District Facility or upon any non-District
vehicle without the owner’s consent while the vehicle is parked at a District

Facility.

Flammable Substances. No person shall bring aboard a District Vehicle,

or take into a District Facility flammable substance, except for matches and

cigarette lighters.

Weapons. No person, except a Police Officer, shall bring into or carry

aboard a District Vehicle, or bring into a District Facility, any knife, (except

a folding knife with a blade less than 3 % inches in length), ice pick, bow,

arrow, crossbow, any explosive device or material, any instrument or

weapon commonly known as a blackjack, sling shot, sand club, sandbag,
sap glove or metal knuckles, etc., or any other illegal or unlawfully
possessed weapon of any kind.

Non-payment of Fare; Misuse of Bus Pass or Group Pass.

(@) Non-payment of Fare. No person shall occupy, ride in or use, any
District Vehicle unless the person has paid the applicable fare; has a
valid and lawfully acquired transfer, bus pass, or group pass; or is
otherwise authorized a free or reduced fare.

5

45039-27477 4898-9210-2751.2

50



Misuse of Bus Pass. No person shall use or attempt to use a District
bus pass to board or ride in a District Vehicle unless the bus pass
was lawfully acquired at an authorized District outlet by or on behalf
of the person. Unless otherwise transferable by the express terms of
the bus pass, only the person identified on the bus pass may use
such pass.

(c) Misuse of Group Pass. No person shall use or attempt to use a District

(d)

(e)

1.20 Exclusion.
In addition to any penalties provided herein for the violation of this
Ordinance, and to any penalties for the violation of the laws of the State of
Oregon, any Police Officer, Safety and Inspector Officer and other persons
as may be designated by the District's General Manager, may issue a

(1)

Notice

group pass to board or ride in a District Vehicle unless:

(i) The group pass was lawfully acquired at an authorized District
outlet by or on behalf of the person; and

(i) The group pass is used according to the terms of the
applicable group pass agreement; and

(i)  The person is a current member of the group to whom group
pass were issued pursuant to the applicable group pass
agreement.

Confiscation of Misused Bus Pass or Group Bus Pass. Any

District Vehicle operator or any Police Officer may confiscate a bus

pass or group bus pass used or presented for use in violation of

subsections (b) or (c ) of this section.

Nonpayment of Fare, Misuse of Bus Pass or Group Bus Pass is

Theft. Any person who violates subsection (a), (b) or (c) above, in

addition to any penalties described herein, may be subject to criminal

prosecution for theft of services.

of Exclusion from the District Transit System to any person who

violates this Ordinance. The maximum period for exclusion shall not exceed

ninety
below:

(@)

(b)

(c)

(90) days. The exclusion process shall be progressive as set forth

Except in cases involving imminent threats to public health and
safety, a person is entitled to an initial written warning that they have
violated this Ordinance prior to receiving a Notice of Exclusion.

If a person has previously received a written warning that they have
violated this Ordinance or if the violation constitutes an imminent
threat to public health and safety, the District shall give written Notice
signed by the issuing authority to that person, notifying them that they
have been excluded from all or part of the District Transit System.
The written Notice shall specify the particular violation or reason for
exclusion, places and duration of exclusion, just cause for length of
exclusion, and the consequences for failure to comply with the
notice. Except in cases demonstrated by just cause, the initial length
of any exclusion will be one week.

If a person has previously been excluded from the District Transit
System, the District may provide a subsequent exclusion Notice for

6

45039-27477 4898-9210-2751.2

51



(2)

a longer period of time, up to the maximum time allowed under this
Ordinance

(d) In order to ensure the safety, convenience, and comfort of all
passengers, a District Vehicle operator may, without giving written
Notice of Exclusion, direct a passenger to leave a District Vehicle, or
direct a prospective passenger not to board a District Vehicle, if the
operator has probable cause to conclude that such passenger is in
violation of any provision of the Ordinance. Without written Notice of
Exclusion, such exclusion shall be effective only for the route in
progress at the time of the exclusion.

(e)  The District will ensure that no person with a disability will be
refused transportation except for in circumstances where the
individual is engaged in violent behavior, seriously disruptive
behavior, engaged in illegal conduct, or represents a direct threat to
others. The District acknowledges that certain disabilities may result
in the involuntary breach of this Ordinance and therefore will review
each alleged violation on a case-by-case basis.

A Notice of Exclusion shall be effective immediately upon issuance and

shall remain in effect until the exclusion expires, is terminated by the District,

or is rendered ineffective upon appeal. Any person receiving a Notice of

Exclusion may appeal in writing under the following procedures:

(@) Appeals must be in writing and are allowed at any point during
suspension. Suspension lengths will be determined by the issuing
party by considering due process and if the event preceding
exclusion is a reoccurring offense. These determinations will be
noted on the Notice of Exclusion.

(b)  The District Appeals Officer shall review the appeal and issue a
decision within ten (10) days after receipt of the appeal. He or she
shall notify appellant, in writing, of the decision. The exclusion shall
remain in effect during the pendency of the appeal.

(c) If the decision on appeal is in favor of the excluded person, the period
of exclusion set forth in the Notice of Exclusion shall be terminated
immediately. If the appellant is dissatisfied with the ruling of the
District Appeals Officer, he or she may appeal to the District General
Manager.

(d)  Appeals to the District General Manager of the District Appeals Officer's
decision can be made any time during the suspension. Appellants shall
have the right to present information at a meeting open to the public, if
desired, and will be notified of the date, time, and location.

(e)  The District General Manager shall render a decision within fifteen
(15) days after receiving the appeal. The decision by the District
General Manager shall be final.

Notwithstanding (2) above, at any time during the period of exclusion, a

person who has received a Notice of Exclusion may apply to the District

Appeals Officer for a variance to allow the person to enter upon the

7

45039-27477 4898-9210-2751.2

52



District Transit System. The District Appeals Officer may, at his or her sole
discretion, grant a variance if the person establishes a need to enter upon
the District Transit System for reasons of employment, medical treatment
or similar good cause. A variance may include such conditions as the
District Appeals Officer determines will prevent future offenses.

(4) A person excluded under this section may not enter or remain upon any part
of the District Transit System from which the person is excluded during the
stated period of exclusion. In addition to penalties imposed by this
Ordinance, an excluded person who enters or remains upon any District
Vehicle or part of the District Transit System from which the person has been
excluded, may be charged with Criminal Trespass in the Second Degree,
ORS 164.245, or as amended hereafter, and subjected to the penalties
thereto.

1.25 Violations and Enforcement.

(1)  Any Police Officer, Safety and Inspector Officer, or Operator has the
authority to refuse entrance on a District Vehicle or District Facility, require
departure from a District Vehicle or District Facility, or to require a seating
change, of any person who violates this ordinance, regardless of location
and regardless of pass, transfer, ticket, or valid fare.

(2) In addition to being excluded from the system pursuant to §1.20 of this
Ordinance, any person who violates this Ordinance commits a violation as
defined in ORS 153.008 to 153.025 and, upon conviction, may be punished
by a fine of not more than $250, in addition to other penalties provide by
law.

(3)  Any Police Officer as well as Safety and Inspector Officer is authorized to
issue citations to any person who violates any provision of this Ordinance.
Safety and Inspector Officers are not Police Officers and only have the
powers to arrest afforded a private person under ORS 133.225.

1.30 Jurisdiction. The laws of the State of Oregon, and all local laws of the
jurisdiction where any infraction occurs, apply with equal force and effect to the District
Transit System. Police Officers are expressly authorized to enforce all applicable State
and local laws, and this Ordinance, upon the District Transit System.

1.35 Severability. It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent of Tillamook
County Transportation District that the provisions of this Ordinance are severable, and if
any provision, clause, section, or part is held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional or
inapplicable to any person or circumstance, the remaining provisions shall continue to be
in force and such partial illegality, invalidity, unconstitutionality or inapplicability shall not
affect or impair the application of the remaining provisions to other persons and
circumstances.

2.0 Effective Date. These amendments to Ordinance 3 shall become effective thirty
(30) days after their adoption.

Passed and adopted by the District Board this 15th day of October, 2025 and signed by
the Board Chair and Board Clerk in authentication of its passage.

8

45039-27477 4898-9210-2751.2

53



TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT

First Reading: August 20, 2025 Board Chair

Second Reading: September 17, 2025

Effective Date: October 15, 2025 Attest:

Board Clerk

9

45039-27477 4898-9210-2751.2

54



	1 Board Packet Cover 10.15.2025
	Agenda 10.15.2025 FINAL
	REGULAR MEETING
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	CONSENT
	ACTION ITEMS
	None
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	UPCOMING EVENTS
	October 31, 4:00-6:00 PM: Trunk or Treat Trolley Operation
	November 2nd-5th: Oregon Public Transportation Conference, Bend

	FINAL Board Packet 10.15.2025
	7 Financial and Grant Reports
	8.1 08-25 RIDERSHIP REPORT
	8.2 Service Performance Report 08.2025
	Slide 1: TCTD Operations Statistics & Performance August 2025
	Slide 2: YTD COMPS BY SERVICE TYPE
	Slide 3: IN-COUNTY RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE YTD COMPS
	Slide 4: DAR RIDERSHIP BY SERVICE TYPE YTD COMPS
	Slide 5: PASSENGER CATEGORIES YTD COMPS

	8.3 Primary Perfomance Measures
	9 2025.10.10 NWOTA Meeting Agenda_v2
	9.1 2025.09.12 NWOTA Minutes v2
	10 NW Rides Brokerage Report
	11 GM Report_October 2025
	13 September 17, 2025 Board Minutes FINAL
	2. Pledge of Allegiance
	3. Roll Call:
	Present
	TCTD Board of Directors
	Absent
	TCTD Board of Directors
	TCTD Staff
	Brian Vitulli, General Manager
	Cathy Bond, Finance Supervisor (via Zoom)
	Michael Reed, Operations Superintendent
	Keri Brown, Admin Assistant/Board Clerk
	Guest
	Arla Miller, ODOT Public Transportation Division (via Zoom)
	4. Announcements and Changes to Agenda
	5. Public & Guest Comments:
	ODOT PTD Arla Miller: Shared how she enjoys working with the staff here and appreciates everyone.
	6. Executive Session: None.
	7. Second Reading of Ordinance No. 3: Amending Ordinance No. 3 – Establishing Regulations Governing Conduct on District Property.
	STATE OF THE DISTRICT REPORT
	8. Financial and Grant Report: Financials for July 2025 are included in the Board packet pages 10-34.
	11. NW Rides Brokerage: Statistics for August 2025 are included in the Board packet page 48-51.
	Brokerage Manager Deputy stated that there was an investment with Quick Cab to help purchase a wheelchair van.
	Director Johnston asked how was this funded, Brokerage Manager Deputy stated that it was through CareOregon.
	Director Hanenkrat asked if all the dialysis patients were back in Tillamook at the new center. Brokerage Manager Deputy stated that not all are back due to availability.
	12. General Manager Report: Updates included in Board packet pages 52-53 (see GM Report in packet for details):
	a. Administration/Coordination
	b. Planning Development
	c. Grant Funding
	d. Facility/Property Development
	e. Operations and Vehicle Maintenance
	Director McCall asked if the presentation of the Zero Emission Fleet Transition Plan in December is for the Board. GM Vitulli said no that this is a presentation to an outside group.
	13. Miscellaneous: None.
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	ACTION ITEMS
	DISCUSSION ITEMS
	17. Staff Comments
	General Manager Vitulli: None
	Admin Assistant Brown: Wished FS Bond a Happy Birthday and she is missed.
	Finance Supervisor Bond: Stated that she thanks everyone and is happy to still help until a new Finance Supervisor is found.
	Brokerage Manager Deputy: None
	Operations Superintendent Reed: None
	18. Board of Directors’ Comments
	Dir. Hanenkrat: Asked if we are going to be using the Trolley for anything else and the new Trolleys that are coming in. GM Vitulli stated that the existing Trolley will continue to be used for the PC Shuttle and events like parades and the new trolle...
	Dir. Devlin: Asked if the trolley could be used for event transportation for people staying at different hotels. GM Vitulli stated that federal and state regulations do not allow the District to provide charter-type service for private events.
	Dir. Ressler: Asked if there are different bike rack designs that make it easier for people to load bicycles on the front of buses. GM Vitulli stated that NWOTA adopted a revised bike policy in April 2025, and that riders are responsible for loading t...
	Dir. Sappington: None
	Dir. Johnston: None
	Dir. McCall: None
	Chair Bean: Stated that he was on vacation and was able to see the other commuter buses on the coast.
	19. Adjournment: Board Chair Bean adjourned the meeting at 7:03 pm.
	These minutes were approved on this 15th of October 2025.
	ATTEST:

	15 ORDINANCE 3 Conduct on District Property FINAL
	BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
	An Ordinance Establishing )
	(11) Safety.
	(13) District Property.
	(23) Non-payment of Fare; Misuse of Bus Pass or Group Pass.
	1.25 Violations and Enforcement.

	TILLAMOOK COUNTY TRANSPORTATION DISTRICT





